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DESCRIBE THE PRESENT AND ORIGINAL (if known) PHYSICAL APPEARANCE

The Academy Building stands on. the western side of School Street,

set back from and above the street on the hillside of the Gorham Campus

of the University of Maine at Portland - Gorham. It faces northeast
and has a commanding view of the countryside to the north and east.
The exterior of the Academy Building has barely been altered since

it was completed in 1806. The handsome Fedgfal structure has been

and continues to be an architectural focal point of the Town of Gorham.

\ The Academy Building is a wooden frame structure, two stories
high, 40 feet wide, and 50 feet Iong. From the center of its hip-
on-gable roof rises a square wooden cupola with four arched openings
and a wooden spire. The cupola houses a bell, hung there in 1807,

The exterior foundation wall is of cut granite. The side and end
walls are finished with a narrow ship-lapped clapboards. All the
window openings are framed by flush mouldings of a medium width.

The windows themselves (the only alteration in the exterior appearance
of the building), are modern, double hung 6-over-6. A modillion

cornice with a narrow bed mould runs around the entire building. The

four corners of the building are finished with wooden quoins. The
roof is presently shingled in asphalt. The building is painted white.
The front (northeast facade of the Academy Building is impressive.
A classically detailed portico and pediment give dienity to this main
entrance. #A balcony with a wooden balustrade projects from the second
floor. It is supported by four Doric wooden columns, forming a wide
portico which is approached by granite stairs from three directions.
Four engaged pilasters frame the entrance door and one of the two
windows to either side of it. The entrance door is six~panel, set
in afh arched opening with a fanlight above. Four Ionic pilasters on
the second floor level frame a central door with a fanlight above
and one of two windows to each side, echoing the first floor motif.
The pilasters support a pediment which is broken out from the cornice
and has an identical raking cornice. The pediment is decorated with
a moulding relief of a fanlight in the center. (An earlier photograph
dating prior to 1886 shows a glass fanlight.) The facade wall surface
is flush horizontal boarding; its smoothness sets off the fine detail
of the balcony, columns, pilasters, arnd pediment.

The interior of the Academy Building has been altered several
times. The original use of the building in 1806 was as a collgﬂée

- preparatory school for boys. Apparently the first floor was finished

as one large room with a broad aisle between three rows of desks on
either side, and a smaller room. The Academy was used as a preparatory
school under various names until 1877, 1In 1895 it was given to the
state, It was then used as a grammar school, a dormitory, and an
industrial arts building. /1n 1963 the Academy was renovated for use

as an art building, fand it is presently used as such by the University
e i S

of Maine at Portl - Gorham.

(See Continuation Sheet)
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7. DESCRIPTION

Many of the original features of the interior can still be
seen, In the unfinished attic, the heavy timber framing of the
building is clearly visible. The roof is supported by four king-
post trusses. The joints are pegged, mortise and tenon. The
timbers are coded with hatch marks. The first and second floors
are free spans of 40 feet. The floor to ceiling height of the first
floor was originally 13 feet, of the second floor 11 feet. (In spite
of the modern lowered ceilirgs and partitions of the 1963 renovation,
one can still sense the scale and spaciousness of the original interior
of the Academy.) The later pressed tin ceilings of the first and
second floors remain intact behind the present ceilings. Identical
wooden mouldings are used around all the windows on both floors. Some
of the original horizontal board and bead panelling of the first floor
can be seen by the stairs to the basement. The thick fieldstone walls
of the full basement employ many huge stones. The brick columns
supporting the beams of the first floor are intact.
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STATEMENT OF SIGNIFICANCE

In 1802, the citizens of Gorham petitioned the Massachusetts
Legislature to establish an academy in Gorham. On March 5, 1803,
the Governor of Massachusetts approved the act. The Gorham
Academy was incorporated and a board of trustees named. It was
an accomplishment to have such an educational institution located
in Gorham. At the time, there were only six other incorporated
academies in.Maine.

In laﬁﬂj Samuel E}dé; of Gorham was contracted to build the
Academy, the plan having been fixed by a building committee. The
Academy was dedicated on September 8, 1806, and opened on September
9, 1806. Funds to operate it came from the students' tuition
and the sale of wildlands granted to it by the legislature. The
Gorham Academy was at first a male preparatory school, then co-
educational, then male, then female. In 1856, it again became
co-educational as the Gorham Seminary. It was closed in 1877.

Students attended the State Normal School which opened on the
hill behind the Academy in 1878. The Academy had served its
purpose well, educating many Maine citizens.

The people of Gorham were proud to have founded the Gorham
Academy, and their pride is reflected in the design of the build-
ing. The scale is large and ambitious. The exterior detailing
is carefully execute?n The main entrance facade is well-propor-
tioned and handsome./ An elegant Federal building rising fram
_the hillside, the Academy Building bas today. the same real

_QigﬁiﬁymiimhégJlﬂ;ﬁhfmgﬂﬁf;l Although many modern buildings

have recently been added to the Gorham Campus of the University
of Maine at Portland - Gorham, the Academy Building continues to
be an architectural focal point on the campus and in the town.
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